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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") is a private limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. It
is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The Bank provides banking and
other related financial services to its customers and placements with banks in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our business activities as mentioned above are carried out under prudent risk management. In view of
the changing macroeconomic environment, the Bank has been closely monitoring the market volatility in
order to manage its liquidity risks and enhance the return on assets.

ANALYSIS OF KEY FINANCIAL DATA

For the year ended 31 December 2022, profit before tax amounted to HK$500,493 (2021: loss
HK$15,076,078). Interest income amounted to HK$21,875,018 (2021: HK$3,136,786), which was
increased by 597% from last year. Total assets in the current year amounted to HK$1,909,623,509 (2021:
HK$2,056,381,738), representing a decrease of 7% from last year.

With regards to the Bank's operating expenses, the directors' emoluments and staff costs amounted to
HK$9,682,653 (2021: HK$13,077,006), showing a decrease of 26% from last year.

Total capital ratio of 227.06% as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 218.07%) increased by 9%. Both Tier 1
capital ratio and Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio were maintained at 226.84% (2021: 217.90%),
representing an increase of 9% from last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the net interest margin was 1.04% (2021: 0.16%) showing an
increase of 0.88% from the results in the previous year. Return on average total assets was 0.03% (2021:
-0.71%). Return on equities was 0.06% (2021: -1.89%).

Overall, the Bank's core business lines and financial health are strong and sound. Its asset quality is good,
capital adequacy ratio and liquidity maintenance ratio are well above the relevant statutory requirements.



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Sustainability and environmental conservation are important issues for our customers, shareholders, the
government and the general public. Therefore, the Bank is committed to reducing its carbon footprint
and consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business operations.

Our environmental strategy is centered on achieving a balance between the quality and efficiency of our
services and the minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Bank has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external communications by means of
telephone, emails or such other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally friendly.
Consequently, we are able to minimise physical printing.

At present, except for legal documents such as contracts and share certificates and documentary evidence
for audit or legal purposes, the Bank avoids keeping duplicate of hardcopy of all documents and reports.
All kinds of documents are scanned and saved in an electronic system for future retrieval.

E-mails and electronic messages have replaced letters for some formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Bank operates in a highly regulated sector where the risk of non-compliance with regulatory
requirements could lead to the loss of operating licenses. Accordingly, the effective management of the
relationship between the Bank and its regulators could significantly impact the success of the Bank and
its long-term value. Therefore, we make it a top priority to ensure compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations, and to stay up to date on new laws.

During the year under review, the Bank has, therefore, deployed considerable resources, as well as
adopted and implemented relevant measures, to ensure that the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements are complied with and that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.

Compliance with these laws, regulations and similar requirements may be onerous and expensive. Any
such costs, which may rise in the future as a result of changes in these laws and regulations or in their
interpretation could individually or in the aggregate make the Bank's services less attractive to the Bank's
customers; delay the introduction of new services; or cause the Bank to change or limit its business
practices. The Bank has implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with the
most relevant laws and regulations, but there can be no assurance that the Bank's employees or agents
will not violate such laws and regulations or the Bank's policies and procedures.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Bank are one of the most important assets and stakeholders of the Bank and their
contribution and support are valued at all times. The Bank regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies according to industry benchmark, financial results as well as the individual performance of
employees. Other fringe benefits and mandatory provident fund are provided to retain loyal employees
with the aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring the Bank to new levels of
success. Staff satisfaction can be seen by our low staff turnover. Furthermore, the Bank places great
emphasis on the training and development of employees and regard excellent employees as a key factor
in its competiveness.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers has been one of the critical
reasons for the Bank's success. Our mission is to provide the finest services to our customers. The Bank
is constantly looking at ways to improve customer relationship through enhanced services. Through
carrying out the above we hope to enhance our business opportunities with our customers and reach out
for new potential clients.

The Bank has no major suppliers due to the nature of the principal activities of the Bank.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Bank include strategic, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget at the end of each financial year
based on the knowledge to external environments and a number of forecast and estimates. Given the
rapid change of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry, the Bank is facing
significant strategic risks on its business decisions and capital expenditures when changing the strategic
plans to adapt to the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational risks

The management regularly reviews the Bank's operations to ensure that the Bank's risk of losses, whether
financial or otherwise, resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed. The Bank has also established its own business continuity plan to
protect the Bank from the risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 18 to the financial statements heading "FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS".

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 9.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Bank's share capital are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There was no
movement in the Bank's share capital during the year. :
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared NIL dividend for 2022 (2021: NIL) in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE BANK

The Bank's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2022 comprised the
retained profits, general reserve and capital reserve of HK$497,053,416 (2021: HK$496,557,395).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Ko, Sai Kin Kenneth (Chairman)

Mr. Ko, Derek Fook Ying

Mr. Ko, Arthur Sai Chun

Mr. Ko, Sai Kit Larry

Ms. Ko, Mang Yee Adaline (Resigned on 21 June 2022)
Ms. So, Tuen Tuen Jessica

Mr. Wong, Wang Yan Mark

Mr. Yuen, Man Ying

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association, all directors retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Bank
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Bank was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
In accordance with Article 126 of the Bank's Articles of Association, there is a permitted indemnity

provision for the benefit of the directors of the Bank which is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Ko, Sai Kin Kenneth
CHAIRMAN

21 March 2023



Deloitte. =

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED
~ (Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") set out on pages
9 to 46, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

INspire HK
mENEE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI YAU BANK. LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2023



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Gain on fair value changes of financial asset
through profit or loss

Other operating income

Operating income
Operating expenses
Impairment (loss) write-back

Profit (loss) before taxation
Profits tax expense

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income
for the year

2022 2021
HKS$ HKS$
21,875,018 3,136,786
(5,674,503) (509,540)
16,200,515 2,627,246

375,000 725,000
79,588 280,783
16,655,103 3,633,029
(15,997,487)  (18,752,038)
(157,123) 42,931
500,493 (15,076,078)
(4,472) -
496,021 (15,076,078)




TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks

Advances to customers and other accounts
receivable

Prepayment

Tax recoverable

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Equipment and leasehold improvements

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers
Other accounts payable and provisions

CAPITAL RESOURCES
Share capital
Reserves

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

11

12

13

14

15
16

17

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
308,963,140 458,057,419
1,587,156,071  1,588,991,518
8,135,734 1,179,349
413,170 420,560
- 3,110,831
4,500,000 4,125,000
- 41,667
210,000 210,000
245,394 245,394
1,909,623,509  2,056,381,738
1,107,397,388  1,255,293,054
5,122,705 4,481,289
1,112,520,093  1,259,774,343
300,000,000 300,000,000
497,103,416 496,607,395
797,103,416 796,607,395
1,909,623,509  2,056,381,738

The financial statements on pages 9 to 46 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTORS: KO, SAI KIN KENNETH
KO, DEREK FOOK YING

KO, ARTHUR SAI CHUN

-10 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

At 1 January 2021

Loss and other comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Profit and other comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 December 2022

Note:

Share Retained General Regulatory  Capital

capital profits reserve reserve reserve Total

HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
300,000,000 460,126,414 46,000,000 50,000 5,507,059 811,683,473

- (15,076,078) - - - (15,076,078)

300,000,000 445,050,336 46,000,000 50,000 5,507,059 796,607,395
300,000,000 445,050,336 46,000,000 50,000 5,507,059 796,607,395
- 496,021 - - - 496,021
300,000,000 445,546,357 46,000,000 50,000 5,507,059 797,103,416

The regulatory reserve is set up in compliance with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority's requirements and is

distributable to shareholders of the Bank subject to consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The general reserve and capital reserve comprised transfers from previous years' retained profits.

-11 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on fair value changes of financial asset through
profit or loss
Depreciation expenses
Increase (decrease) in impairment allowance

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in placements with banks due within
one month with original maturity more than three months
Decrease in placements with banks due more than
one month with original maturity more than three months
Decrease in advances to customers
Decrease (increase) in prepayment
Decrease in deposits from customers
(Decrease) increase in other accounts payable

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks with original maturity less than
three months

2022
HK$

500,493

(21,875,018)
5,674,503

(375,000)
41,667
157,123

2021
HKS$

(15,076,078)

(3,136,786)
509,540

(725,000)
306,826
(42,931)

(15,876,232)

(18,164,429)

176,690,445  (236,349,981)
58,393,751 321,647,277
309,000 319,000
7,390 (345,195)
(147,895,666)  (118,397,445)
(1,550,368) 1,186,835
70,078,320 (50,103,938)
14,612,323 3,753,541
(3,482,719) (580,818)
3,106,359 -
84,314,283 (46,931,215)
84,314,283 (46,931,215)

1,310,530,188

1,357,461,403

1,394,844,471

1,310,530,188

308,995,804

1,085,848,667

458,103,346

852,426,842

1,394,844,471

1,310,530,188

-12-



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1. GENERAL

Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") is a private limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. It is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Bank is 29/F, Tai Tung Building, 8
Fleming Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The major businesses of the Bank are the provision of banking and other related financial services
to its customers and placements with banks in Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Bank.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Bank has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use
Amendments to HKFRS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Bank's financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

-13 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

New or amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet effective

The Bank has not early applied the following new or amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts!
October 2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)!

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising

from a Single Transaction!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Bank anticipate that the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial asset

at fair value through profit or loss that are measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

-14 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are recognised in Interest income and Interest expense in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate ("EIR") to the gross carrying amount of a financial instrument, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired.

-15-



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Equipment and leasehold improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements is stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of equipment and leasehold improvements is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of equipment and leasehold improvements is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

-16 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and
. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCT"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and
. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
1) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets - continued
(i1))  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial
assets (including cash and balances with banks, placements with banks, advances to customers
and other accounts receivable) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Bank's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

For all instruments, the Bank measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Bank recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Bank considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

®

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk - continued

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external
(if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Bank presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Bank has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Bank regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Bank considers an event of default occurs when

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Bank, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Bank considers that default has occurred when a financial

asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Bank has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

(iii)

(iv)

™

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(© the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Bank's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the

Bank in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets - continued
v) Measurement and recognition of ECL - continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where evidence at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
according to similar credit risk characteristics:

Nature of financial instruments

Past-due status

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Bank recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the

asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including deposits from customers, interest payable and accounts payable, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit/loss before tax because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Bank's expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Bank assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Bank as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Bank allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Bank; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Bank in dismantling and removing the

underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Bank is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leases - continued
The Bank as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Bank recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Bank uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if

the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Bank under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank exercising

an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Bank remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and ,
. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-

alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leases - continued
The Bank as a lessee - continued
Lease modifications - continued

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Bank remeasures the
lease liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Bank accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Bank allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the Bank's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and
. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation

for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
maturity from the date of acquisition at or less than three months, including cash and balances
with banks and placements with banks with original maturity less than three months.

- 26 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

4. INTEREST INCOME

Interest on placements with banks
Interest on advances to customers

5. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on deposits from customers

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fees and commission income
Other income

7. OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor's remuneration
Depreciation of equipment
Directors' emoluments
- Fees
- Other emoluments:
Salaries
Long services payment
Other operating expenses
Operating lease payments
Staff costs
- Salaries and bonus
- Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund

2022 2021
HKS HK$
21,874,381 3,136,334

637 452
21,875,018 3,136,786
2022 2021
HKS$ HK$
5,674,503 509,540
2022 2021
HKS$ HK$
26,575 31,684
53,013 249,099
79,588 280,783
2022 2021
HKS$ HKS
760,000 719,960
41,667 306,826
1,300,000 1,300,000
- 1,330,000
- 3,375,000
4,636,888 3,845,929
876,279 802,317
8,163,268 6,863,223
219,385 208,783
15,997,487 18,752,038
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8.

IMPAIRMENT (LOSS) WRITE-BACK

2022 2021
HKS HKS$
Cash and balances with banks 13,263 (909)
Placements with banks maturing within one month (56,238) (24,328)
Placements with banks maturing one to twelve months (116,838) 64,342
Advances to customers 2,690 3,826
(157,123) 42,931
PROFITS TAX EXPENSE
The tax expense comprises:
2022 2021
HKS$ HK$
Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Current year - -
- Overestimate of tax recoverable in prior years (4,472) -
(4,472) -

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021

HKS$ HKS$
Profit (loss) before tax 500,493 (15,076,078)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 8.25% (2021: 16.5%) (41,291) 2,487,553
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised - (2,487,553)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 41,291 -
Overestimate of tax recoverable in prior years (4,472) -

(4,472) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$14,878,257 (2021: HK$15,574,546) available to offset against future profits. The tax losses
can be carried forward indefinitely.

In 2022, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 8.25% on estimated assessable profits up to
HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of estimated assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.
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10.  CASH AND BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

2022 2021
HKS$ HK$
At amortised cost
Cash and balances with banks
- Cash 1,522,686 1,551,834
- Due from Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA")
- on demand 293,898,710 443,001,634
- Interbank Clearing Account 475,643 -

- Due from foreign banks - on demand 10,502,847 10,510,198
- Due from local banks - on demand 2,595,918 3,039,680
Less: Impairment losses - Stage 1 (32,664) (45,927)

308,963,140 458,057,419
Placements with banks maturing
- within 1 month 662,769,895 471,841,555
- between 1-3 months 835,088,308 1,067,679,019
- between 3-6 months 90,000,000 50,000,000
- between 6-12 months - -
Less: Impairment losses - Stage 1 (702,132) (529,056)
1,587,156,071 1,588,991,518
Total 1,896,119,211 2,047,048,937
11.  ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The advances to customers and other accounts receivable comprise:
2022 2021
HKS HKS$
Advances to staff 423,000 732,000
Less: Impairment allowance - stage 1 (2,810) (5,500)
420,190 726,500
Interest receivable 7,715,544 452,849
1,179,349

8,135,734
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12. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
HK$ HKS$
Unlisted securities:
- club membership (financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss) 4,500,000 4,125,000

The unlisted securities were issued by a corporate entity in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2022,
the fair value of club membership was valued with reference to the quote from the club's official
website.

13. EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Leasehold
improvements Equipment Total
HKS HKS$ HKS$

COST
At 1 January 2021 1,472,938 1,813,499 3,286,437
Additions - - -
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 1,472,938 1,813,499 3,286,437
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 1,472,938 1,465,006 2,937,944
Depreciation for the year - 306,826 306,826
At 31 December 2021 1,472,938 1,771,832 3,244,770
Depreciation for the year - 41,667 41,667
At 31 December 2022 1,472,938 1,813,499 3,286,437
CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2022 - - -
At 31 December 2021 - 41,667 41,667

The above items of equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at 33.3% per annum.
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14.

15.

16.

Provision for
long service

payments

HKS$

Total
HKS$

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised by the
Bank.

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
HKS$
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022 (1,391)

246,785

245,394

The directors consider movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the current and

prior years are not significant.

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Current accounts
Savings deposits
Time, call and notice deposits

OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND PROVISIONS

Interest payable to time, call and notice deposits
Provisions for long service payments
Other accounts payable:

- Accounts payable

- Cashier orders

- Gift Cheques

- Others

- Interbank Clearing Account

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
71,772,363 104,761,014
383,764,054 478,485,742
651,860,971 672,046,298
1,107,397,388 1,255,293,054
2022 2021
HKS$ HK$
2,245,446 53,662
1,441,633 1,441,633
1,417,277 1,491,782
7,849 26,266
10,500 19,200
- 8,877
- 1,439,869
1,435,626 2,985,994
5,122,705

4,481,289
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17.

18.

SHARE CAPITAL
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
HKS$ HKS$

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares

At beginning and end of year 3,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000 300,000,000

There was no movement in the Bank's share capital for both years.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
2022 2021
HKS$ HKS$
Financial assets
Amortised cost 1,904,254,945 2,048,228,286
Fair value through profit or loss 4,500,000 4,125,000
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 1,111,078,460 1,258,332,710

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the
analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
The Bank's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of
reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the Risk Committee under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Risk Committee identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Bank's operating units. The Board provides written principles covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative
financial instruments. In addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment. The most important types of risks from the use of
financial instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. Market risk includes currency
risk, interest rate and other price risk. '
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18.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Bank's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments.

The Bank accepts deposits from customers for various periods, and seeks to earn interest margins
by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to meet all
claims that might fall due.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Bank. The Bank's main income generating activity is placement
to other banks and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk arises from advances to
customers and placement with banks maturing between one to twelve months. The Bank
considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as counterparty default risk, geographical risk
and sector risk for risk management purposes.

Credit risk management

The Bank's Risk Committee is responsible for managing the Bank's credit risk by:

. Ensuring that the Bank has appropriate credit risk practices, including an effective system
of internal control, to consistently determine adequate allowances in accordance with the
Bank's stated policies and procedures, HKFRS and relevant supervisory guidance.

o Identifying, assessing and measuring credit risk across the Bank, from an individual
instrument to a portfolio level.

. Creating credit policies to protect the Bank against the identified risks including the
requirements to obtain collateral from borrowers, to perform robust ongoing credit
assessment of borrowers and to continually monitor exposures against internal risk limits.

. Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of asset, counterparties, industry, credit rating,
geographic location etc.

o Establishing a robust control framework regarding the authorisation structure for the
approval and renewal of credit facilities.

. Developing and maintaining the Bank's risk grading to categorise exposures according to
the degree of risk of default. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews.

o Developing and maintaining the Bank's processes for measuring ECL including

monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward-looking information and the method
used to measure ECL.
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18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk management - continued

. Ensuring that the Bank has policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and
validate models used to assess and measure ECL.

. Establishing a sound credit risk accounting assessment and measurement process that
provides it with a strong basis for common systems, tools and data to assess credit risk and
to account for ECL. Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to
promote best practice throughout the Bank in the management of credit risk.

The internal audit function performs regular audits making sure that the established controls and
procedures are adequately designed and implemented.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, the Bank monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Bank will measure the
expected credit loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Bank uses different criteria to determine whether credit risk has increased significantly per
portfolio of assets. The criteria used are both quantitative changes in PDs and credit default swap
("CDS") spread as well as qualitative indicators which are external credit rating, significant
adverse change in regulatory, economic or technological environment, adverse change in business
and financial conditions and changes in performance behaviour of borrower or portfolio.

The Bank presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due unless the Bank has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Bank has monitoring procedures in place to make sure that the criteria used to identify
significant increases in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant increase in credit risk is
identified before the exposure is defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.

The Bank has controls and procedures in place to identify when the credit risk of an asset
improves and the definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer met. When this is the
case the asset may move back to stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being up to date and
the ability of the borrower to make future payments on time.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:

° probability of default ("PD"); and
. loss given default ("LGD").
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Measurement of ECL - continued

As explained above these figures are generally derived from statistical models and other historical
external data and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-looking information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a
point in time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating tools
tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are
based on market data, as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors.
PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment
rates. The estimation is based on current conditions, adjusted to take into account estimates of
future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account
cash flows from any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts of future
collateral valuation taking into account sale discounts, time to realisation of collateral, cross
collateralisation and seniority of claim, cost of realisation of collateral and cure rates (i.e. exit
from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured assets consider time of recovery,
recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis, where
the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan.

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including extension options) over which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer
period, even if contact extension or renewal is common business practice.

Credit quality

The Bank monitors credit risk per class of financial instrument. The table below outlines the
classes identified, as well as the financial statement line item and the note that provides an
analysis of the items included in the financial statement line for each class of financial instrument.

Class of financial instrument Financial statement line Notes
Financial assets at amortised cost Cash and balances with banks 10
to banks Placements with banks

Financial assets at amortised cost Advances to customers and other accounts 11
to customers receivable

An analysis of the Bank's credit risk concentrations per class of financial asset is provided in the
following tables. For financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts.
Financial assets at amortised cost to banks represent cash and balances with banks and placements
with banks and interest receivable of placements with banks while financial assets at amortised
cost to customers represent term loans granted to employees of the Bank.
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Credit quality - continued

Financial assets at amortised cost to banks

Concentration by sector
- HKMA
- Foreign banks
- Local banks

Concentration by region
- Hong Kong
- United States
- United Kingdom
- Canada

Financial assets at amortised cost to customers

2022
HK$

293,898,710
10,502,847
1,598,169,665

2021
HK$

443,001,634
10,510,198
1,593,013,103

1,902,571,222

2,046,524,935

1,892,068,375  2,036,014,737
8,173,526 7,959,915
1,928,582 2,173,462
400,739 376,821
1,902,571,222  2,046,524,935
423,000 732,000

There were no overdue, rescheduled and repossessed assets as at 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021.

Financial asset at FVTPL

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial asset at FVTPL is its carrying amount of

HK$4,500,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$4,125,000).

Collateral held as security

The Bank does not hold collateral or other credit enhancements associated with financial assets at

31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks
arise from open positions in interest rate and currency, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market factors, such as
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices and commodity prices.

The Bank's market risk exposures mainly arise from the interest rate risk and foreign exchange

risk.
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Management of market risk

The management of market risk is principally undertaken in treasury function using risk limits
approved by the Board of Directors. The Bank has dedicated standards, policies and procedures
in place to control and monitor the market risk. The market risks arise on the operation are
assessed and managed under the supervision of Risk Committee. The Bank has met all the de
minimise exemption criteria for calculation of market risk as set out in Banking (Capital) Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies; hence exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts where appropriate. The Board of
Directors sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-
day positions, which are monitored daily.

The following table illustrates the carrying amount of the Bank's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities. It indicates the concentration of currency risk at the end of the

reporting period.
HKS$ Us$ GBP CAD Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
202
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 298,463 8,172 1,928 400 308,963
Placements with banks maturing
within one month 589,889 26,829 38,336 7,588 662,642
Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months 819,490 8,421 96,603 - 924,514
Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable 7,525 127 483 1 8,136
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 4,500 - - - 4,500
1,719,867 43,549 137,350 7,989 1,908,755
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 933,087 32,762 134,804 6,744 1,107,397
Other accounts payable 3,249 95 336 1 3,681
936,336 32,857 135,140 6,745 1,111,078
Net on-balance sheet position 783,531 10,692 2,210 1,244 797,677
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Foreign exchange risk - continued

HKS US$ GBP CAD Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
2021
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 447,548 7,959 2,173 377 458,057
Placements with banks maturing
within one month 394,942 26,127 42,644 8,057 471,770
Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months 1,059,568 9,591 48,063 - 1,117,222
Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable 1,164 6 9 - 1,179
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 4,125 - - - 4,125
1,907,347 43,683 92,889 8,434 2,052,353
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,125,080 32,462 90,641 7,110 1,255,293
Other accounts payable 3,023 3 14 - 3,040
1,128,103 32,465 90,655 7,110 1,258,333
Net on-balance sheet position 779,244 11,218 2,234 1,324 794,020

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Bank is exposed to US$ and no sensitivity analysis is prepared as the management considered
that the effect is insignificant under the linked exchange rate system.

In addition, the following table details the Bank's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
HKS$ against GBP and CAD. The 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting the foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represent management's assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items and adjust their translation at the year
end at 5% change in foreign currency rates. For a 5% weakening/strengthening of the HK$
against the relevant currencies, the impact on the profit after tax would be as follows:

Impact
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit after tax
GBP 93/(93) 94/(94)
CAD 52/(52) 55/(55)
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Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates on cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. Limits are set on the level of
mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The Bank measures the exposure of its assets and liabilities to fluctuations in interest rates
primarily by way of gap analysis which provides the Bank with a static view of the maturity and
re-pricing characteristics of these positions. The daily maturity profile reports are prepared by
classifying all assets and liabilities into various time period categories according to contracted
maturities or anticipated repricing dates whichever is earlier. The difference in the amount of
assets and liabilities maturing or being re-priced in any time period category would then give the
Bank an indication of the extent to which the Bank is exposed to the risk of potential changes in
the net interest income.

The tables below summarise the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the tables are
the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier
of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest
1 month months months years S years bearing Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2022

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks - - - - - 308,963 308,963
Placements with banks maturing
within one month 662,642 - - - - - 662,642
Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months - 834,659 89,855 - - - 924,514
Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable 3,000 4,522 362 252 - - 8,136
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss - - - - - 4,500 4,500
665,642 839,181 90,217 252 - 313,463 1,908,755
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 596,065 439,560 - - - 71,772 1,107,397
Other accounts payable - - - - - 3,681 3,681
596,065 439,560 - - - 75,453 1,111,078
Total interest sensitivity gap 69,577 399,621 90,217 252 - 238,010 797,677
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Interest rate risk - continued

Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2021

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks - - - - - 458,057 458,057
Placements with banks maturing
within one month 471,770 - - - - - 471,770
Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months - 1,067,261 49,961 - - - 1,117,222
Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable 210 363 147 459 - - 1,179
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss - - - - - 4,125 4,125
471,980 1,067,624 50,108 459 - 462,182 2,052,353
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 737,479 413,053 - - - 104,761 1,255,293
Other accounts payable - - - - - 3,040 3,040
737,479 413,053 - - - 107,801 1,258,333
Total interest sensitivity gap (265,499) 654,571 50,108 459 - 354,381 794,020

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to floating interest rates
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
points (2021: 25 basis points) increase is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
management and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2021: 25 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the impact on the profit after tax, mainly attributable to the Bank's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate customer deposits, would be as follows:

Impacts
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit after tax (800) (997)
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its
obligations as they fall due, or will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from

mismatches in the timing of cash flows which is inherent in all banking operations and can be
affected by a range of market-wide events.

Management of liquidity risk

Management is responsible for monitoring the Bank's liquidity position, and does so through the
periodic review of the statutory liquidity maintenance ratio, the maturity profile of assets and
liabilities, loan-to-deposit ratio and inter-bank transactions. Liquidity policy is monitored by
management and reviewed regularly by the Risk Committee and Board of Directors of the Bank.
The Bank's policy is to maintain a conservative level of liquid funds on a daily basis so that the
Bank is prepared to meet its obligations when they fall due in the normal course of business and
to satisfy statutory liquidity maintenance ratio requirements, and also to deal with any funding
crises that may arise. Limits are set on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to
meet all the calls on cash resources such as overnight deposits, current accounts and on the
minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover
withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The Bank's management sets internal target levels in respect of the daily and monthly average
liquidity maintenance ratios. The Bank's accountant is responsible for monitoring these ratios and,
where a liquidity position falls under the internal limits, the accountant reports his findings to the
management who decides the appropriate corrective actions to be taken.

Liquidity table

The following table details the Bank's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will accrue to those liabilities except
where the Bank is entitled and intends to repay the liability before its maturity.

3 months
Less than 1-3 to 1-5 Over Carrying
1 month months 1 year ears S years Total amount
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022
Deposits from customers 668,954 443,634 - - - 1,112,588 1,107,397
Other accounts payable 1,502 2,179 - - - 3,681 3,681
670,456 445813 - - - 1,116,269 1,111,078
As at 31 December 2021
Deposits from customers 842,271 413,135 - - - 1,255,406 1,255,293
Other accounts payable 2,026 1,014 - - - 3,040 3,040
844,297 414,149 - - - 1,258,446 V 1,258,333
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Off-balance sheet items

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Bank's off-balance sheet financial instruments that
commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities, financial guarantees (based on the
earliest contractual maturity date) are summarised in the table below.

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021

Guarantee, acceptances and other

financial facilities

No

later than

1 year
HK$'000

3,490

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

1-5 years
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

3,490

The maturity analysis based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date in accordance with the guideline issued by the Hong Kong Monetary

Authority is shown below.

At 31 December 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks maturing

within one month

Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months

Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assets

Prepayment

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers
Other accounts payable

Net liquidity gap

Maturity Date
Three months One year  Five years
One or less or less or less
Repayable month but over but over but over Over Carrying
on demand or less one month three months oneyear  five years Undated Amount
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
308,963 - - - - - - 308,963
- 662,642 - - - - - 662,642
- - 834,659 89,855 - - - 924,514
- 3,000 4,522 362 252 - - 8,136
- - - - - - 4,500 4,500
- - - - - - 210 210
- - - - - - 245 245
- - - - - - 413 413
308,963 665,642 839,181 90,217 252 - 5,368 1,909,623
455,537 212,300 439,560 - - - - 1,107,397
94 1,409 2,179 - - - 1,441 5,123
455,631 213,709 441,739 - - - 1,441 1,112,520
(146,668) 451,933 397,442 90,217 252 - 3,927 797,103
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Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued

At 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks maturing

within one month

Placements with banks maturing
between one to twelve months

Advances to customers and other
accounts receivable

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assets

Prepayment

Equipment and leasehold improvements

Tax recoverable

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers
Other accounts payable

Net liquidity gap

Maturity Date
Three months One year  Five years
One or less or less or less
Repayable month but over but over but over Over Carrying
on demand or less one month three months oneyear  five years Undated Amount
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
458,057 - - - - - - 458,057
- 471,770 - - - - - 471,770
- - 1,067,261 49,961 - - - 1,117,222
- 210 363 147 459 - - 1,179
- - - - - - 4,125 4,125
- - - - - - 210 210
- - - - - - 245 245
- - - - - - 421 421
- - - - - - 42 42
- - 3,111 - - - - 3,111
458,057 471,980 1,070,735 50,108 459 - 5,043 2,056,382
583,247 258,993 413,053 - - - - 1,255,293
54 1,972 1,014 - - - 1,441 4,481
583,301 260,965 414,067 - - - 1,441 1,259,774
(125,244) 211,015 656,668 50,108 459 - 3,602 796,608

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The directors considered that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements are approximately their fair values.

Capital management

The Bank has adopted a policy of maintaining a strong capital base to:

- comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Banking

Ordinance; and

- support the Bank's stability so as to provide reasonable returns for shareholders.

Capital adequacy ratio, computed as a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets,
has remained well above the statutory minimum ratio.
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Capital management - continued

Capital adequacy position and the use of regulatory capital are monitored closely by the Bank's
management, employing techniques based on the Banking (Capital) Rules. The required
information is filed with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on a quarterly basis in the form of a
statistical return.

The Bank has an established business planning process to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities. The process states the Bank's capital adequacy goals in

relation to risk, taking into account its strategic focus and business plan.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Bank determines fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Some of the Bank's financial instruments are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Bank uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Bank measures the fair value with
reference to the quote from the club's official website.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

Fair value Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
31 December 2022
Financial asset at FVTPL
- club membership - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
31 December 2021
Financial asset at FVTPL
- club membership - - 4,125,000 - 4,125,000

During the current year, there was no transfers of financial instruments between Level 1 and
Level 2.

In estimating the fair value of the club membership classified as Level 2, the fair value is arrived

at with reference to the quote from the club's official website. The financial asset at FVTPL were
measured at market value as at 31 December 2021 and 2022.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank undertook transactions which include principally the acceptance of deposits, with its
related parties, including key management personnel and their close family members and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them.

During the year, the Bank had the following transactions with related parties:

2022 2021

HKS$ HKS$
Interest expense on deposits 5,188,985 495,865
Rental and other related expenses 876,279 802,317

The interest rate for time, call and notice deposits ranged from 0.015% to 4.500% (2021: 0.0005%
to 0.155%) and maturity from within one month to three months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had the following outstanding balances with related
parties:

2022 2021

HKS$ HKS$
Current accounts 42,892,951 85,645,839
Savings deposits 296,100,840 369,913,894
Time, call and notice deposits 599,928,541 658,684,545

938,922,332 1,114,244,278

The balance of current accounts is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The balance of
savings deposits is interest bearing at 0.625% (2021: 0.001%) and repayable on demand.

The balance of time, call and notice deposits is interest bearing from 2.23% to 4.5% (2021: from
0.01% to 0.135%) with maturity from within one month to three months.

The transactions were carried out on terms similar to those applicable to transactions with
unrelated parties.

The Bank had issued letters of guarantee, majority to utility companies in lieu of deposits
amounting to HK$3,490,000 (2021: HK$3,490,000) for a company connected with directors of
the Bank.

Key management compensation

2022 2021

HKS$ HKS$
Salaries and allowances (including directors' fees) 6,163,167 6,271,780
Long services payment - 3,375,000

There was no sign-on awards and severance payments provided during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: HK$Nil).
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had the following outstanding contractual amounts of
contingent liabilities and commitments:

2022 2021
HKS$ HKS$

Direct credit substitutes 3,490,000 3,490,000

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The Bank operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "Scheme") for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Bank, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Bank contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, and the
related contribution is matched by the respective employee.

Contributions payable to the Scheme by the Bank for the year amounting to HK$219,385 (2021:
HK$208,783) had been charged to profit or loss.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for office premises which fall due as follows:

2022 2021
HKS$ HKS$
Within one year 738,540 738,540

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Bank for its office premises. The
current leases will expire in November 2023 and rents are fixed for the lease period.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The unaudited supplementary financial information regarding corporate governance and other financial
information disclosed pursuant to the Banking (Disclosures) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority is as follows:

1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors is assisted by the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Risk
Committee, Nomination Committee, Executive Committee and Credit, Asset and Liability
Management Committee in corporate governance matters.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors who report regularly
to the Board. It monitors compliance with policies approved by the Board and other internal and
statutory regulations. It provides an oversight of the Bank's internal and external auditors and
thereby assists the Board in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process and internal control systems of the Bank.

The Bank has established a Remuneration Committee with specific written Terms of Reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors who report regularly to the Board. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the Bank's policy,
practices and structure for all remunerations of Directors and members of Senior Management,
and determining their specific remuneration packages. The Bank will ensure that no Director or
any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration and at least an annual review
of the Bank's remuneration system and its operation is carried out independently of management.
During the year 2022, two meetings were held and attended by all committee members.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
following is a summary of the work performed during the year:

@A) Reviewed the remuneration systems and its operations of the Bank;

(i1) Reviewed annual salary payment for the year;

(ili)  Reviewed the remuneration of senior management, key personnel and other staff; and
(iv)  Reviewed the remuneration policy.

The Bank has reviewed its remuneration policy for all employees of the Bank. The remuneration
policy covers guidelines and procedures that are commensurate with the business of the Bank. It
also supports the Bank's ethical values, objectives, strategies and control environment. The
remuneration structure is designed to encourage employee behavior that supports the Bank's risk
management framework and long-term financial soundness. There was no change to our
remuneration policy during the year.
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The remuneration package consists entirely of fixed salary payable in cash only. In considering
the remuneration structure, the Bank has regarded to the seniority, role, responsibilities and
activities of the employees and the need to promote behavior among employees that supports the
Bank's risk management framework and long-term financial soundness.

A systematic role evaluation methodology is used to establish each employee's appropriate level
of remuneration. By means of an annual/periodic performance review, the degree to which each
employee is satisfying the requirements of the role and the degree to which established
performance objectives have been achieved are to be assessed. The Bank will reward employees'
achievement by directly linking pay to performance outcomes. Poor performance may affect the
level of remuneration increment in the coming year.

The senior management consisting of ten persons and key personnel of four persons were paid
with fixed remuneration in cash of HK$4,509,947 and HK$1,653,220 (2021: HK$4,540,580 and
HK$1,731,200) respectively during the year, totalling HK$6,163,167 (2021: HK$6,271,780). We
did not provide other form of remuneration including guaranteed bonuses, sign-on awards and
severance payments during the year.

The Risk Committee stands at the highest level of the Bank's risk governance structure under the
Board. It consists of three independent non-executive directors. The Risk Committee provides
direct oversight over the formulation of the Bank's risk appetite and ensures that the risk appetite
is reflected in the policies and procedures. The Risk Committee also regularly reviews the Bank's
risk management framework and ensures that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies with appropriate resources.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board on relevant matters
relating to identify, select, nominate and recommend suitable individuals to the Board for
directorships and senior management positions. The Nomination Committee also performs
evaluation of the Board performance and Directors' contribution to the effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors.

The Executive Committee consists of at least three members of the Board including the Chairman
and one Executive Director. The Committee ensures the continuity in the management of the
business and affairs of the Bank and carries the full power and authority of the Board on matters
requiring urgent approval or other action of the Board in between board meetings.

The Credit, Asset and Liability Management Committee comprises the Chief Executive, the
General Manager, the Manager, the Treasurer and the Heads of Accounts and Operations. The
Committee is established to implement and maintain the overall risk management framework
relating to credit, liquidity positions, cash flows, maturities, interest rate as well as exchange rate
trends and compliance functions.

The directors of the Bank are of the opinion that the Bank has complied with the Supervisory
Policy Manual "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Als" issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.
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2. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(©)

By geographical area

All the business operations of the Bank are in Hong Kong.

By class of business

The Bank operates predominantly in the commercial banking business.
Advances to customers - by industry sectors

The information concerning advances to customers by industry sectors has been classified
according to the usage of the loan and is stated gross of any provisions.

2022 2021
HKS$ HKS$
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Individuals - other private purposes 423,000 732,000

The loan borrowers are predominantly located in Hong Kong.

3. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a)

Liquidity position

The average liquidity maintenance ratio is the simple average of each calendar month's
average liquidity maintenance ratio. Each monthly average liquidity maintenance ratio is
calculated as the ratio of the average liquefiable assets to the average qualifying liabilities
after relevant deductions in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

2022 2021
% %
Average liquidity maintenance ratio for the year 93.78 100.96
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3. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION - continued
(b) Capital adequacy

Capital adequacy ratios were calculated on a solo basis, in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (the "Capital Rules") issued by the HKMA. The ratios were compiled in
accordance with the amended Capital Rules for the implementation of the "Basel III"
capital accord. The Bank has adopted the basic approach for the calculation of the risk-
weighted assets for credit risk and the basic indicator approach for the calculation of
operational risk.

2022 2021
% %
Total capital ratio 227.06 218.07
Tier 1 capital ratio 226.84 217.90
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 226.84 217.90

The detailed disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules will be disclosed
under "Regulatory Disclosures" on the website of the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

(© Leverage ratio

The bank is required under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules to disclose its leverage ratio.
Leverage ratio was calculated on a solo basis, in accordance with the Capital Rules issued

by the HKMA.
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
% %
Leverage ratio 41.65 38.66

The detailed disclosures can be viewed under "Regulatory Disclosures" on the website of
the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

(d Capital conservation buffer ratio

The Capital conservation buffer ratio for calculating the Bank's buffer level is 2.5% as at
31 December 2022 (2021: 2.5%) in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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3. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION - continued
(e) Countercyclical capital buffer ratio

The countercyclical capital buffer ratio was compiled in accordance with the Banking

(Capital) Rules.
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
% %
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.993 0.997

The detailed disclosures can be viewed under "Regulatory Disclosures" on the website of
the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

® Capital charge for operational risk

The capital charge for operational risk calculated in accordance with the basic indicator
approach at the end of the reporting period is:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital charge for operational risk 1,921 2,898

4. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected losses attributable to human error, systems failures,
fraud, or inadequate internal controls and procedures.

Risk management is carried out by the Risk Committee under the policies approved by the Board
of Directors to manage operational risks through proper human resources policies, delegation of
authorities, segregation of duties, and timely and accurate management information.

A comprehensive contingency plan is available to ensure that key business functions continue and
normal operations are restored effectively and efficiently in the event of business interruption.
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5. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The information of international claims discloses exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk. In general, such transfer of risk takes place if the claims are
guaranteed by a party in a country which is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims
are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in another country. Only
countries constituting 10% or more of the aggregated international claims are disclosed.

Banks

HK$'000

As at 31 December 2022
Developed countries 199,490
- of which: Japan 190,915
Offshore centres 1,029,978
- of which: Hong Kong 838,507
- of which: Singapore 191,471
Developing Asia and Pacific 680,418
- of which: China 495,012
Taiwan 185,406

As at 31 December 2021
Developed countries 353,398
- of which: Japan 345,061
Offshore centres 1,124,874
- of which: Hong Kong 1,124,874
Developing Asia and Pacific 578,649
- of which: China 392,887
Taiwan 185,762
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6. CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency exposure arising from non-trading and structural positions which constitute 10%
or more of the total net position in all foreign currencies are as follows:

31.12.2022
(Equivalent in HK$)
USD GBP CAD Total
Spot assets 43,556,332 137,423,235 7,992,999 188,972,566
Spot liabilities (32,856,931) (135,139,954) (6,745,593) (174,742,478)
Net long position 10,699,401 2,283,281 1,247,406 14,230,088
Net structural position - - - -
31.12.2021
(Equivalent in HK$)
USD GBP CAD Total
Spot assets 43,690,428 92,920,596 8,435,570 145,046,594
Spot liabilities (32,465,327)  (90,654,559) (7,109,818) (130,229,704)
Net long position 11,225,101 2,266,037 1,325,752 14,816,890

Net structural position - - - -

7. OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank had no overdue or rescheduled loans and other
assets.

8. MAINLAND ACTIVITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank had no non-bank exposures in the Mainland.

9. COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Bank has fully
complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.
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SR 30 HFBEI S SRR STREMI -

AITA IR P E s o DUl > (5 SR S R I B R & 5 SR
ERNAES » 401 © A S (MG R 7 AR A R RRIAE 1] » B AR
P[] 25— L -
PR B TR

STRETHINE SRR Z B A EATT

. BIMEE R
. BEIEIER -
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0 LRIl > 3% FEER EEIRE R MRS AR - BB TR AR
BERIIERTIEIEEE -
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BE ARG -

RIITHERAGLE (BRI ZRYERETERIEERK - BEGLRE
HHERAELT o sRIE 1 > 385 RTiE (i~ E RN ) FIEE SR -

FIEES

AFATR RSB TR Z (EEE b o MRS 7 ESRREE - B B 5 1H H Akt
at o HISEEmUEA B iR BB YT H 2 1 T BT 7 o0

A T A AP B libES
T B AT B 2 SR TR R R < R B SR TV &S 1 [FI SR A X 10
AT B Z B FERK & PR H A BRI 11

R T SRR E E R ERE T AT - sEREEN S - RP YIS RIRE
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Ea8&-8
2022 2021
it it
T SE R A ST & 2 SRITE K
Fe e P& oy 2 R b e e
- HaEeEHE 293,898,710 443,001,634
- SNERISRTT 10,502,847 10,510,198
- RHFRTT 1,598,169,665  1,593,013,103
1,902,571,222  2,046,524,935
Pt & oy 2 R b p i
- T 1,892,068,375  2,036,014,737
- EH] 8,173,526 7,959,915
- 1,928,582 2,173,462
DIEVN 400,739 376,821
1,902,571,222  2,046,524,935
PSR ARG T B 2 B P EK 423,000 732,000

#2022 4E 12 A 31 H K 2021 4F 12 A 31 H - IGAEEE ~ 40 R [E &R -
DIA (B8 H HE R A0 S RlEE

A 20224 12 H 31 H » DA nfEERZ B HEEFHET ABGNeREZE 2 5 NME EEfs SR
THI{E 4,500,000 s (722021 4F 12 H 31 H : 4,125,000 &) o

(EfE IR HE4H

2022 512 H 31 H > AR TR B Rl & AR B e e = (B 2 an (e
fr (5220214212 A 31 H « ) -

eI

ASRAT AT 2 i a5 R i 5 (R AR SR Bl T ek T B A S B E SR AR B U B
Z B o TR A B AR R SRR AU AC PR B > BT AR S B Ry — R S fE e T
LTS INEH R BN KAE > GOSN ~ AR ~ (S EEHE - BeRE(ER RS E -

ASSRAT TS 2 185 g 2 A R B e S N e
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Rl TE - &

i e\

5 e P B g IR e B R IR T &S - ASRITEOTE IR ~ BUR
FAEFP LIERNE B TG E s - 2SR BATs e RBIIRES - BEMEBEEZ
SEEE MEHI ERE - AT EEERIEEESMZRITE (EA) BANKEHEE:
o NETE NS ERARTA R -

PN

FASRITE TR B LIMNE R X G W NI EZR IR T/H I D (EZ BV - PR
b Z RN EE G ESNE SR ERNBOR 2 - EFGUATE SR EEL X
BRZHIRRTR F H NP 4R AYPESRAEAT » 2950 IR -

NRYBAARRITLSMEGEHEEEN A EZIRAE - BB RS SRA S E b

piact FEIC HEgE pos ot

BT BT HIETIT BT BT

2022
[EEFIR & K BRI THYAE 1T 208,463 8,172 1,928 400 308,963
—(E BN EEA > B2 589,889 26,829 38,336 7,588 662,642
— -+ (E B NS B2 819,490 8,421 96,603 - 924,514
B PSR HAp U R T 7,525 127 483 1 8,136

DI e E{ER 2 HHEF)

AR SR A E 4,500 - - - 4,500
1,719,867 43,549 137,350 7,989 1,908,755

EfE
EgENEE ¢ 933,087 32,762 134,804 6,744 1,107,397
HAERHETE 3,249 95 336 1 3,681
936,336 32,857 135,140 6,745 1,111,078
BEABEFRNFIEFH 783,531 10,692 2,210 1,244 797,677
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&t i - 458

T ET BLEE i &E
AT BT BT ST BT
2021
IR & K BRI T 4E T 447,548 7,959 2,173 377 458,057
—(E B N EHA > F A 394,942 26,127 42,644 8,057 471,770
—ZE+—(H B NFIE > B2 1,059,568 9,591 48,063 - 1,117,222
B PR HA EU R TE 1,164 6 9 - 1,179
DA e EEE & HEHEE)
st AER R E E 4,125 - - - 4,125
1,907,347 43,683 92,889 8,434 2,052,353
EfE
2 R 1,125,080 32,462 90,641 7,110 1,255,293
LA FE(THRIA 3,023 3 14 - 3,040
1,128,103 32,465 90,655 7,110 1,258,333
ErEEERNFFE R 779,244 11,218 2,234 1,324 794,020
SMER R E

ASR1T ER A STV INEE s - EEE R AR IR NIRRT R - PR
AR HBURE Z 01 -

BESN » NREEV AR T ST I8 RN BT R NS % BURVE - S EEE AN RsE
B DIIMNBIER i e R TRVAS R ER A Z 2B 5% - BURE B BAE USNEE
S Z REEHEIHH RN R S N TEARS% 2 SEENE THAREREE - EF0EN S HRAER &
e fia5% G9EA/ARENT  BIRIR A Z s BT

8
2022 2021
AT AT
[BRTRE vl
T 93/(93) 94/(94)
il 52/(52) 55/(55)

-38 -



KA AT AR

18.

LRl THA -4

iy

AR e e

PR 2R e Ry N T S R A T 2 sl L B AR AR U EhE A Y - & FefEIE
IR e\ e oy DR T S5 M SR S T AR e i T (B (DR Bh e AR R B - AR TR i
RIFE T S H AR /KA B 2 s B TR E b - B 22 I Re g IS Ehif BT - (HRA] N
TR LA NZ R B TTR D B e 1R - PR nT REAHE 2 BRI ARG EC /K e e R -
TE RS

ASRIT R R M BRI SN AT ARy - ERLGEET > DEREEAERTT
L FARUEIEATE L S R TEAS R RV R RE R - BIEEREE H R R A
BRI SR H BORE T E e (E H AR SRR - PAS R I o PO TR R 2
FIRASC R E AV EPE R R ARV ER R S AT R AR TS A R A Z VB
Pt R R -

R AR T B FFRE S o B AR TR R e R (RAIRIENE - LG WE
e EECETHA H W e o -

1{EH TEAME3MEALLE 14 E
BT Z3MH F12{(8F ZE5% S5FMULE FEFIE &i
Al Bl Too BT BT B Tot BTt BETIC

202212 H31 H

JEE 73R < K BRI THISE1F - 308,963 308,963
—{[E# H NEIHA 2 [GI 217 662,642 - - - - - 662,642
—E-+E H N EIIZ [FISEFRR - 834,659 89,855 - - - 924,514
B PSR HAtr FE IR TE 3,000 4,522 362 252 - - 8,136
DA EEet & H )
HAERNEREE - - - - - 4,500 4,500
665,642 839,181 90,217 252 - 313,463 1,908,755
=N
B 596,065 439,560 - - - 71,772 1,107,397
H At fE{TRETE - - - - 3,681 3,681
596,065 439,560 - - - 75,453 1,111,078
FIEREAEE S 69,577 399,621 90,217 252 - 238,010 797,677
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TR b - 48

1{EH LEALLE3EAME 158 E
BT Z3HH F12{(8F ZE5% S5FMULE FEHFIE &
BT BN ToT BWToT BEToT BN Tot BETIoT BETUT

2021 F 12 H31 H

JEE A7 3R 4 R BRI THISGEfF - 458,057 458,057
—{E B NEIHA 2 FZEF 471,770 - - - - - 471,770
— &+ {E B NEEEZ [FIZEFI - 1,067,261 49,961 - - - 1,117,222
B PSR HoAf USRS 210 363 147 459 - - 1,179
DA fEERT = HH )
ST AEE SRS E - - - - - 4,125 4,125
471,980 1,067,624 50,108 459 - 462,182 2,052,353
afE
& EIFER 737,479 413,053 - - - 104,761 1,255,293
HoAth JE (T RRTE - - - - 3,040 3,040
737,479 413,053 - - - 107,801 1,258,333
FMEBURZEE & (265,499) 654,571 50,108 459 - 354,381 794,020

USRI ST o2 S R T BRI - B A R I M T
IR P9 E MR AER - FUFTRAND 25 5585 (202148 : 25 5585) - SIS BRI
R - BRI RS TR -

GG 25 ALRE (2021 4F © 25 ALk WFEHERZRAE > NE PR FEIFRIT
HIERANE BT

il
2022 2021
AT AT
FrAi iz Al (800) (997)
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ERITHE -8

SN E A

ENE b R AR TERZ T e R BRI E T T R (LB I E T R (R i
EUEZEEE - DLEEbR 5 H IR S SRR SRR % sBHCSeRITHR 2 L B R
ber H 2Bl i35 £ — 25 R E -

S

B AR AR T BT E SR > WA E AR E MBI MR LR - BENA
2 SIHIERCE R ~ BB FRREE B AR [FISER 5 AR IR L - B & R i e 2 B
o WHEERZ B g AR TER G - AT ZBOR 5 EBRER RTIEEAVRENE
& (EASRIT AT DARSHRH B 1T HAE IR F S5 E P B 2 /AL - WA GAE BN EMERFEER
HOR > FREEN A DR A E St - aJERHEBNE SHIRGIE R REER] - DUET AT
AESEREL - FIORE R AR MPARAR/K PRI AR A - e e e
HMNNTEK ©

AFATEE LS D& H Z PR - SN HEKE - AT g 2T

BREEZFR > WERER/ VI NEIREAR - et EEgrE i E R - DURE
PRI ENTTEIEELL -

NEEFVIARITIFIT A CR A EZ 6r N EIERHIIR - TR SR & (E 2 S 4RIREARTT
HUEFCHIMHIE - i ERETREERHIFE - AR TE AR EAMEITRAEIIR
AT SR A S RSP -

1{EH TEALE 3EAME 14Dk
s £ 3{HH 214 E5H SEELLE f=ian HREI{E
AT BT BBTor BT BTt A%t AHTT

R A=A

R 20224£ 12 A 31 H

ZE1EE 668,954 443,634 - - - 1,112,588 1,107,397

Lt E ST HETE 1,502 2,179 - - - 3,681 3,681
670,456 445,813 - - - 1,116,269 1,111,078

R20214E12 A31H

Eg=resiy 842,271 413,135 - - - 1,255,406 1,255,293

HAFE(THEIE 2,026 1,014 - - - 3,040 3,040
844,297 414,149 - - - 1,258,446 1,258,333
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HEAEFRINAH

RIS TEERRERINAE PR IERE RN SRR NI - DU MR E NI

Eir (P2 aImHETRE) 454

TS

22022 £ 12 H 31 H &% 2021 412 H 31 H

AT

PEOR ~ R R HA 5 TR

DLek T EIBRER O & M B {H

LEDA

SBHET T

3,490

1FEFE 55

AT

AN
o

ST 5T

3,490

R EECRVEBEEHRMIIES ] - ZRRIEREIIRATER N Z aIHIMREHAEELL T 77

7

ZIHHHAR
1{EH 3{EAH 14
11EH PEE  PIEE MERE 54 S5 £ A
BIBEEER  BRDAR 3{EA 14 54 Bk H HR I B
BETL OBETL BT BT BETL BT BT BKTL
2022412 A 31 H
JEEFF B 4 R BASR TINAE TR 308,963 - 308,963
—{& 5 N EIHA 2 [E2E A7 - 662,642 - - 662,642
— &+ {8 A B [F - 834,659 89,855 - 924,514
B PSR HAN EHRE 3,000 4,522 362 252 8,136
DA efEfER & B TR AE
B SR 4,500 4,500
A 210 210
TR T A 245 245
TEAFFH 413 413
308963 665,642 839,181 90,217 252 5368 1,909,623
aff
= IR 455537 212,300 439,560 - 1,107,397
oA RETE 94 1,409 2,179 1,441 5,123
455631 213,709 441,739 1441 1,112,520
REE SR (146,668) 451,933 397,442 90,217 252 3,927 797,103
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DA RO T B R M B 5 - 48

ZIHAHAR
1{EH 3{EH 14
1A PEE  PILEE ME=E 54 fHE5 B

BIRFIERR  ECA T 3{HH 14 54 LB HiH IEAI{E

EHETT O ERTIT BT ANToT AN ANTor ANTor BNTT
R 2021412 H31H
JER A B < B BSRA TRV 4 7 458,057 - 458,057
—{E A AEHEZ [F AR - 471,770 - - 471,770
— &+ {#H NEHE > B 2EF - 1,067,261 49,961 - 1,117,222
B R HoAth FE USRI 210 363 147 459 1,179
DA EER 2 B s gl
BRI SRS E 4,125 4,125
M EE 210 210
PR IEARTH A 245 245
TEAT R 421 421
S R E Y2 s - 42 42
U EFEER 3,111 - 3,111

458,057 471,980 1,070,735 50,108 459 5043 2,056,382
aff
EEIFRK 583,247 258,993 413,053 - 1,255,293
HA BRI 54 1,972 1,014 1,441 4,481

583,301 260,965 414,067 1441 1,259,774
TREE B2 (125,244) 211,015 656,668 50,108 459 3,602 796,608

el M BRI A B

EERR  WBEHEE T UBERAST B 2 SR E E MR A ER I ERT A R EE -

EAEH

AGRTERIVAERY 7T e B AR BIR LA

- eI TSRRBIHIERITE (BEA) MAIEK . &
- HEFFASRT T Z AR DR i S B B TR -
1A R BE b 1 A EE B R R RV E AT e EERORFHE A MIREESTZ E -
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TR A -

iy

AEH - 48

DI

EATRRETEE BRI - SR AR TEE R EA DERITHE (BA) MR RELE
ROTREES - BRI RP AN EZ 2GR ERS -

ASRITERE PR B L HE R EA S & e S E (TR R Z SR 758 - SAEF1E
HOHS RGP ST - BT AR TEL R AR R e A E AR -

A TEAA EEETS

AR A B AR T AN (T e E S8 Rl E A e & ERY A U ERVEER

Fo TR IS HAY  sRATHYE e TR LA R (E(EE R - fEfbEt A e EER - ARTT
FE RS RUEEE N (T FI R E R - B0 — S ABRIE AR T2 BB T4
VAR EETE A R EE -

A (EEF SRR T HERD

NERIRAE TIHATER R DA R R EETEN SR TR RS R EE TEEEE R
— R4 -

AVINI=IEN =5

_!_

—
—k &R =&k NfEE
peiics A A A
2022412 H 31 H
DA nfEER = HEEE A E
Bl EMERE
R E - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
2021 F 12 H 31 H
DA nefE{ER = HEEE A E R
B eMERE
- AT EE - 4,125,000 - 4,125,000

AARLERE > il TEAE— R 8 2 2 A5 -
FERFE I RS I E TG RE I A B ER > A REERS S G E T AEIEHRE SN

{17« 5 2021 45 12 [ 31 H R 2022 42 12 [ 31 H » DA/ Ao {6t FLECHME - A 24 A9
TR - HETTSE I -
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ol N
ASRATHRE A £ (B EEEHE AN RBEE T2 - DU RS E SRR E I

WNED) TR B EE R HAAR

AFRATIAFE LRI N LT Z G0

2022 2021
pEuts pEuEs

B PEFRE S H 5,188,985 495,865

FH < S FHAAHRE 7 876,279 802,317

TERA ~ BIHA R ARk Z S A28 By /- 0.015% 2 4.500% (2021 4F : 0.0005% 2 0.155% )
By —2 =& H NI -

ASFRATH e IR i Ll A AV BRBRAT T

2022 2021
i i

G = 42,892,951 85,645,839

FEETTK 296,100,840 369,913,894

T8 ~ BIEA K2 38 R 599,928,541 658,684,545

938,922,332  1,114,244,278

AR P GG ER R A EE TR R R REEORER (2 - (& oGS ER AR Ty 0.625%
(2021 £ © 0.001%) e FRMEZRENRHTH -

TEHH ~ BIHH R AR GS BRI /T 2.23% % 4.5% (2021 4F : 0.01%% 0.135% ) KA
— 2 ={E HAEIH -

B ST A A58 S R -

ARIRTTH—Z AN EZ RS 0 TEHREAHEFENE > £%HF 3,490,000 A
(2021 4F : 3,490,000 J&#s ) o REFITHEDE Rzl 8\ EIHIALER -

FTEETE A B
2022 2021
peEuts it
e R (EiEESEEE) 6,163,167 6,271,780

FHAR B % - 3,375,000

B 2022 4 12 H 31 H > AgRTI IR s g NE s (2021 48 © T8I -
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20. FHEAERINZERE
PR IIR > AT A N HIEA AR SR RUHZ R S8

2022 2021
B B

HFEEZEMEE 3,490,000 3,490,000

21, ERIEFETE
AR TS B — (BRI B ARSI BRI M 2 B RETHE - (RIEFTE &ERE T - 5HEINE
PEELARSRTTEPE AR - 508 ADESERES - RIRTTEETENRMAEREF 2 T
Z A BTN EE E RET SRR o
ARIRTT AR A BHET B30 219,385 MM (2021 4 @ 208,783 %% ) - ZFTHTSIAIE
o S A TR ES R -

22. EEFHERIE

PRI TR 2 BT &Y > YRR TN H S AR AR B BRI AT A A a S (T

2 &S
2022 2021
peEuts it
—EDIA 738,540 738,540

QCEHE TSR E M A AT S & - SRATRHERY 2023 5 11 HEIRA - 1A E
SHINFH B R B -
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(i) s s A
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1. BEEE-E

AT 2 R o 0 5 DB o ISR - A BRI RS - 9T
ST TR, TS R ST R B T B T B S AR A B R
RABNTTEREHE

AIRIT LA S a L A E LA B THYVEER o mieETSEiRs B THYRIA -
AP 8 TAE TAF EAVEDRA TAERIAE G EERE - AR TR LS B E R25%8 & THIR
wt o RIAENIE T > HACERTHIER K e &2 202 -

ASRITHIS R EEEA B B 10 A > DUR 559N 4 A\ B ASRT 2 BisE AN B - 6 DAE E =2
oo AP DABR A (5T < RE > Bl By 4,509,947 i K 1,653,220 s (2021 4 -
4,540,580 e Ky 1,731,200 3542 ) > 3£ 6,163,167 &1 (2021 4F © 6,271,780 3&Hs ) - ASH
TN AT PREEIE S ~ S4UES ROBEE -

ez B G NE RS N AR TR E B AR S B =L T E A
ko g ZE B e BB AR T g (R 2 TR - ELRECRSRA TECRAAR 2 SO 1 3% e
Rty - EnZe B G nE B AR T 2 e B BRI CR AR IR CE BURE T 8 A&
JRERIT AT R R P AR (LA

EVZEEEEMAA] - P -~ BV B G ENERE SR EEAN SR EERESES
fRUEE - IR Z RN ERG RN EENEE SR ZEMETEHE -

et B g H = IR TE SRR

HTZEFHEEEFE AP TEBEANE V=B RGN EHN - ZZEGERR
TEEBGER ZERESNER G WA EE IR R Z A RESFEI D
BTSN TE) -

B8 BENABEHZ G 2B ERE AR T2 48, - SR80 - &8 - SBENgEt e
HEE - ZZEGEAENTRERARER - ARBESI - g - FIEIEE - FlR
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2. srilEl
(@ ity
ARIATAT A RS SN B AEELE -
(b)  FEFEFEY
AER1T ERLCE PR IRITHRF -

(©  HEFE— LTSRS

&P ERIT SRR FE SR8

FEEABBEHERR
{5 A — HARLNH R

SEEFIZEUNEE -

3. HMB&ER
@  REEEIL

AR AEAT (A

2022
S

423,000

2021
B

732,000

i GRITECRBIMER]) 15 - RN ER LR E ST H PR 4R L
R I98 - B H PR R bR P m & i B aE/F AR BETIRR 1%

PHERE B RZEEBRETE -

PR RENEAERTEER

2022
%

93.78

2021
%
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HA B E R -

(b)

(©)

(d)

BEATE

EAT R tEREFIHEECRVE BRI (BRI (BA) BT DB AR
F e RO (EZEREARE ) mEsTHy (ERITE (EA) BA) Frék
Bl AP TRGEATTELETREER VRIS I EE - WA AR
B

2022 2021

% %
HEAEER 227.06 218.07
—IEARLLR 226.84 217.90
LR — A ARLER 226.84 217.90
REATIAAHEENRETT T BB R —EIDIPEEE (BRITEE (H588) Hifl) AREA

&R - DLEE H_J%ﬁAK%EﬁZI%IYZE (www.tybhk.com.hk) e
FEAREE

TRIREREIZ IR E RV EE BRI (RITSE (B4 AN DUBITARETE -
% LR 2 PFE IR R <<$F<'ﬁ% (#258) ML) Frdm -

2022 /£ 2021 4E
12 H 31 H 12 H 31 H
% %
FEFREER 41.65 38.66

TR RATE I EE nT AR T4 s (www.tybhk.com.hk) 2 T BEE 788 | PIEIEE
PisRErE A tER

22022 412 H 31 H » AgRITHIN 4R ErE AL 2.5% (2021 4 © 2.5% ) J53%
e (eI (BEA) MAl 55 -



KA AT AR

3. HMMHER - ®
()  BUEIREE AR

PR ETEAEREE I (RT3 (B4 M) 515 -

2022 £ 2021 4E
12 H 31 H 12 H 31 H
% %
wWiE R R ETE AR LR 0.993 0.997

WG EE A LRI ERHE B v A A SR T4 0E (www.tybhk.com.hk) 2 T B
B NAE -

(N EEREEAYE A S
A

SR 2 BRI AR S A AT B T
2022 2021
BT BT
BERRAEA L] 1,921 2,898
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